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From: Linero, Alvaro

To: "mlee@kooglerassociates.com"; "Cole Krishna"; "Messer Tom"

Subject: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Thursday, February 21, 2013 5:05:37 PM

Hi Max.

| called as soon as | saw your message.
I hadn’t heard that the draft permit was not accessible on-line.

It should be there now if it wasn’t there before.

http://ARM-

Fortunately | do thorough write-ups so the basis of the conditions were in the technical evaluation.

Regarding your observation ...... “The way | am reading the TEPD is that the BACT limit will still
apply as 58 tons per year. Is that the way you are drafting the permit?”

We are lifting the present BACT limit of 0.12 (I think) Ib/ton clinker and relying on the potential to
emit of some 58 TPY.

That way we can be sure that there will not be a PSD significant increase.

So far, | think SAC has not reached even half that amount in a year even though SAC includes
methane and ethane in what is reported.

So | think there is plenty of room within the cap.

In the meantime the present NESHAP of 50 ppmvd THC standard applies (30 operating-day
average) along with the 58 TPY cap.

After that, we propose a value of 20 ppm of THC on a 30 operating day basis as the surrogate for
the existing VOC BACT.

Itis a little more stringent that the value proposed as the NESHAP, but easier to comply with than
0.12 Ib/ton clinker because it is corrected for the methane and ethane without having to separately
measure and subtract those species.

We'll talk soon | hope.
You can call me anytime over the next 24 hours.
I'll take my phone while walking the dog!

Thanks
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Al.

From: Scearce, Lynn

Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2013 4:33 PM

To: Linero, Alvaro

Subject: RE: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit

Here is the new link:

Owner/Company Name: SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT CO.
Facility Name: SUWANNEE AMERICAN CEMENT

Project Number: 1210465-026-AC

Permit Status: DRAFT

Permit Activity: CONSTRUCTION

Facility County: SUWANNEE

Click on the following link to access the permit project documents:
http://ARM-

From: Dr. Max Lee [mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com]
Sent: Thursday, February 21, 2013 4:00 PM

To: Linero, Alvaro
Subject: FW: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit

Hi Al

| don’t see the draft permit on-line or in the email from Lynn Scearce. | should mention that | was
of the understanding from our discussions at lunches and at the SAC office that BACT limits during
the trial test of the bottomash would be relaxed and the only the NESHAP would apply. The way |
am reading the TEPD is that the BACT limit will still apply as 58 tons per year. Is that the way you
are drafting the permit?

Beyond that thought, | have few comments on the TEPD so | need to know when | should officially
make the comments for the record.

Thanks,

Max

From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:44 PM

To: tomm@vcesme.com

Cc: mlee@kooglerassaciates.com; AlNahdy, Khalid; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; ceron.heather@epa.gov;
chris@alachuacounty.us; commissioners@suwcounty.org; bocc@alachuacounty.us;
Imcshe2001@aol.com; long5892@bellsouth.net; dmot51@aol.com; Linero, Alvaro

Subject: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
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Dear Mr. Messer:

Attached is the official Notice of Draft Permit for the project referenced below. Click
on the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and reply back
verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link.

Note: We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will preclude
subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).

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
PERMIT2K .dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf permit zip files/1210465.026.AC.D_pdf.zip

If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information, please
contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Permitting and
Compliance.

Lynn Scearce

Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management — DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone: 850-717-9025

Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year? To learn more, please
visit us online at the following web address: www.titleSfeeholiday.com

- > 3 "
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Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the department
by clicking on this link. DEP_Customer Survey.
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From: Microsoft Exchange

To: AlNahdy, Khalid; alvaro.linero@dep.state.fl.us
Subject: Delivered: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:43:53 PM

Your message has been delivered to the following recipients:

HYPERLINK "mailto:Khalid.AINahdy@dep.state.fl.us"AlNahdy, Khalid

HYPERLINK "mailto:alvaro.linero@dep.state.fl.us"alvaro.linero@dep.state.fl.us

Subject: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit

Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007
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From: Scearce, Lynn

To: Scearce, Lynn

Subject: FW: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:44:36 PM

Attachments: 1210465-026 - Sianed Written Notice.pdf

From: Scearce, Lynn

Sent: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:44 PM

To: 'tomm@vecsme.com'

Cc: 'mlee@kooglerassociates.com'; AINahdy, Khalid; ‘forney.kathleen@epa.gov';
ceron.heather@epa.gov; ‘chris@alachuacounty.us'; ‘commissioners@suwcounty.org';
'bocc@alachuacounty.us’; 'Imcshe2001@aol.com’; ‘long5892@bellsouth.net’; ‘dmot51@aol.com’;
‘alvaro.linero@dep.state.fl.us'

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
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/1210465.026.AC.D_pdf.zip

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
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RICK SCOTT
FLoribA DEpPARTMENT OF GOVERNOR
EnvironmvenTAL ProTeECTION JENNIFER CARROLL
BOB MARTINEZ CENTER LT. GOVERNOR

2600 BLAIRSTONE ROAD
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2400 HERSCHEL T. VINYARD JR.
SECRETARY

Electronic Mail — Received Receipt Requested

tomm@vcsmc.com

Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager
Branford Cement Plant

Suwannee American Cement, LLC
5117 U.S. Highway 27

Branford, Florida 32008-2463

Re: Draft Permit No. 1210465-026-AC
Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust Transfer

Dear Mr. Messer:

Enclosed is the permit package for an air construction permit for the “Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust
Transfer Project” at the Branford Cement Plant, located in Suwannee County at 5117 US Highway 27 in
Branford, Florida. The permit package includes the following documents:

e The draft air construction permit and supporting technical evaluation and preliminary determination
document.

e The Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit provides important information regarding: the Permitting
Authority’s intent to issue air permits for the proposed project; the requirements for publishing a Public
Notice of the Permitting Authority’s intent to issue air permit; the procedures for submitting comments on the
draft permits; the process for filing a petition for an administrative hearing; and the availability of mediation.

e The Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit is the actual notice that you must have published in the legal
advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The Public
Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit must be published as soon as possible and the proof of publication must
be provided to the Department within seven days of the date of publication.

If you have any questions, please contact the Project Engineer, Alvaro Linero, by telephone at (850) 717-9076 or
by email at alvaro.linero@dep.state.fl.us .

Sincerely,
(Electronic Signature)

A.A. Linero

(7 G SHm 2013.02.01
13:12:45 -05'00'
for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator
Office of Permitting and Compliance
Division of Air Resource Management

Enclosures
JFK/aal

www.dep.state.fl.us
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

In the Matter of an
Application for Permits by:

Suwannee American Cement, LLC Draft Permit No. 1210465-026-AC
5117 U.S. Highway 27 Branford Cement Plant
Branford, Florida 32008 Standard Industrial Classification Code: 3241
Responsible Official: Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust Transfer
Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager Suwannee County, Florida

Facility Location: Suwannee American Cement, LLC, operates the Branford Cement Plant, which is located in
Suwannee County at 5117 US Highway 27 in Branford, Florida.

Project: The applicant applied on December 7, 2012 to the Department for an air construction permit. The
project is to install and operate equipment to use bottom ash as a raw material in the portland cement
manufacturing process and to transfer and add small amounts of the in-line raw mill/kiln baghouse dust to the
milled cement product.

Permitting Authority: Applications for air construction permits are subject to review in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-210 and 62-212 of the Florida
Administrative Code (F.A.C.). The proposed project is not exempt from air permitting requirements and an air
permit is required to perform the proposed work. The Office of Permitting and Compliance in the Division of
Air Resource Management is the Permitting Authority responsible for making a permit determination for this
project. The Permitting Authority’s physical and mailing address is: 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #5505,
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400. The Permitting Authority’s telephone number is 850/717-9000.

Project File: A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00
a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at the address indicated above for the
Permitting Authority. The complete project file includes the draft air construction permit, the technical
evaluation and preliminary determination, the application, and the information submitted by the applicant,
exclusive of confidential records under Section 403.111, F.S. Interested persons may view the draft permit by
visiting the following website: http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/apds/default.asp and entering the permit
number shown above. Interested persons may contact the Permitting Authority’s project review engineer for
additional information at the address or phone number listed above.

Notice of Intent to Issue Permit: The Permitting Authority gives notice of its intent to issue an air construction
permit to the applicant for the project described above. The applicant has provided reasonable assurance that
operation of the proposed equipment will not adversely impact air quality and that the project will comply with
all appropriate provisions of Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C. The Permitting
Authority will issue a final permit in accordance with the conditions of the draft air construction permit unless a
timely petition for an administrative hearing is filed under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. or unless public
comment received in accordance with this notice results in a different decision or a significant change of terms or
conditions.

Public Notice: Pursuant to Section 403.815, F.S. and Rules 62-110.106 and 62-210.350, F.A.C., you (the
applicant) are required to publish at your own expense the enclosed Public Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit
(Public Notice). The Public Notice shall be published one time only as soon as possible in the legal
advertisement section of a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by this project. The newspaper
used must meet the requirements of Sections 50.011 and 50.031, F.S. in the county where the activity is to take
place. If you are uncertain that a newspaper meets these requirements, please contact the Permitting Authority at
the above address or phone number. Pursuant to Rule 62-110.106(5) and (9), F.A.C., the applicant shall provide
proof of publication to the Permitting Authority at the above address within 7 days of publication. Failure to
publish the notice and provide proof of publication may result in the denial of the permit pursuant to

Rule 62-110.106(11), F.A.C.

Suwannee American Cement, LLC Air Permit No. 1210465-026-AC
Branford Cement Plant Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust Transfer
Page 1 of 3
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WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Comments: The Permitting Authority will accept written comments concerning the draft air construction permit
for a period of 14 days from the date of publication of the Public Notice. Written comments must be received by
the Permitting Authority by close of business (5:00 p.m.) on or before the end of this 14-day period. If written
comments received result in a significant change to the draft air construction permit, the Permitting Authority
shall revise the draft air construction permit and require, if applicable, another Public Notice. All comments filed
will be made available for public inspection.

Petitions: A person whose substantial interests are affected by the proposed permitting decision may petition for
an administrative hearing in accordance with Sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S. The petition must contain the
information set forth below and must be filed with (received by) the Department’s Agency Clerk in the Office of
General Counsel of the Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station
#35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000. Petitions filed by the applicant or any of the parties listed below must be
filed within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Petitions filed by any persons
other than those entitled to written notice under Section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 14 days of
publication of the attached Public Notice or within 14 days of receipt of this Written Notice of Intent to Issue Air
Permits, whichever occurs first. Under Section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who asked the Permitting
Authority for notice of agency action may file a petition within 14 days of receipt of that notice, regardless of the
date of publication. A petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above,
at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute
a waiver of that person’s right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and
120.57, F.S., or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any subsequent intervention (in a
proceeding initiated by another party) will be only at the approval of the presiding officer upon the filing of a
motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Permitting Authority’s action is based must contain the
following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency’s file or identification
number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; the name, address and
telephone number of the petitioner’s representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during
the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner’s substantial interests will be affected by
the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the agency action
or proposed decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must
so indicate; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts the petitioner
contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or
statutes the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency’s proposed action including an
explanation of how the alleged facts relate to the specific rules or statutes; and, (g) A statement of the relief
sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the
agency’s proposed action. A petition that does not dispute the material facts upon which the Permitting
Authority’s action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same
information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, F.A.C.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition
means that the Permitting Authority’s final action may be different from the position taken by it in this Written
Notice of Intent to Issue Air Permit. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final
decision of the Permitting Authority on the application have the right to petition to become a party to the
proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation: Mediation is not available in this proceeding.

Suwannee American Cement, LLC Air Permit No. 1210465-026-AC
Branford Cement Plant Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust Transfer
Page 2 of 3







WRITTEN NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE AIR PERMIT

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.
(Electronic Signature)

A.A. Linero

(7 G o= 20130201
13:24:46 -05'00'
for Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator
Office of Permitting and Compliance
Division of Air Resource Management

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that either this Written Notice of Intent to
Issue an Air Construction Permit (including the Public Notice, the Draft Permit and Technical Evaluation and
Preliminary Determination), or a link to these documents available electronically on a publicly accessible server,
was sent by electronic mail with received receipt requested before the close of business on the date indicated
below to the following persons.

Tom Messer, Suwannee American Cement, LLC: tomm@vcsmc.com

Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E., Koogler and Associates: mlee@kooglerassociates.com

Khalid AINahdy, DEP Northeast District: khalid.alnahdy@dep.state.fl.us

Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4: forney.kathleen@epa.gov

Heather Ceron, EPA Region 4: ceron.heather@epa.gov

Chris Bird, Alachua County Department of Environmental Regulation: chris@alachuacounty.us
Chair, Suwannee County Board of County Commissioners: commissioners@suwcounty.org
Chair, Alachua County Board of County Commissioners: bocc@alachuacounty.us
December McSherry: Imcshe2001@aol.com

Annette Long, Save Our Suwannee, Inc.: long5892@bellsouth.net

Thomas Ellison: dmot51@aol.com

Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC: lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us

Clerk Stamp

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this
date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with
the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged.

(Electronic Signature)

Lynn Scearce
2013.02.01 14:07:18 -05'00"

Suwannee American Cement, LLC Air Permit No. 1210465-026-AC
Branford Cement Plant Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust Transfer
Page 3 of 3
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			Sincerely,


			In the Matter of an


			Application for Permits by:


			Project File:  A complete project file is available for public inspection during the normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), at the address indicated above for the Permitting Authority.  The comp...


			Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.


			CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE


			Lynn Scearce, DEP OPC:  lynn.scearce@dep.state.fl.us


			Clerk Stamp


			FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT FILED, on this date, pursuant to Section 120.52(7), Florida Statutes, with the designated agency clerk, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.





						2013-02-01T13:12:45-0500


			A.A. Linero








						2013-02-01T13:24:46-0500


			A.A. Linero








						2013-02-01T14:07:18-0500


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
Date: Thursday, February 21, 2013 4:08:02 PM

Attachments: 1210465-026 - Sianed Written Notice.pdf

Certification_.htm

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

To: tomm@vecsme.com
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



http://arm-permit2k.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/1210465.026.AC.D_pdf.zip

http://arm-permit2k.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip_files/1210465.026.AC.D_pdf.zip

http://www.title5feeholiday.com/

http://www.dep.state.fl.us/air/emission/tv_fee_holiday.htm

http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us




From: AlNahdy. Khalid

To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Out of Office: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:43:53 PM

I will be out of the office until February 8 2013. If you need immediate assistance, please
cantact Missy Palcic at (904) 256-1544 or Vince Clark at (904) 256-1559.



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=KHALID.AL-NAHDY

mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us




From: Messer Tom

To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: RE: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 4:36:22 PM

Received. Thanks Lynn

From: Scearce, Lynn [mailto:Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us]

Sent: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:44 PM

To: Messer Tom

Cc: mlee@kooglerassociates.com; AlNahdy, Khalid; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; ceron.heather@epa.gov;
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
PERMIT2K.dep.state.fl.us/adh/prod/pdf_permit_zip files/1210465.026.AC.D_pdf.zip

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



mailto:tomm@vcsmc.com

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
Date: Thursday, February 21, 2013 4:23:19 PM

Attachments: 1210465-026-AC - Draft Permit.doc

A. A. Linero, P.E.

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Office of Permitting and Compliance
850-717-9076

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

To: tomm@vcsme.com
Cc: mlee@kooglerassociates.com; AlNahdy, Khalid; forney.kathleen@epa.gov; ceron.heather@epa.gov;
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Permittee



			Suwannee American Cement, LLC


5117 U.S. Highway 27


Branford, Florida  32008


Authorized Representative:



Mr. Tom Messer, Plant Manager 


			Air Permit No. 1210465-026-AC



Permit Expires:  September 30, 2015


Minor Air Construction Permit



Branford Cement Plant



Bottom Ash Use and Baghouse Dust Transfer








Project



This is the final air construction permit, which authorizes:  the use of coal power plant bottom ash as a raw material; removal and transfer of kiln baghouse dust to the finish mill system; and, associated pneumatic conveyance equipment, bins and silos.  The proposed work will be conducted at the existing Branford Cement plant, which is categorized under Standard Industrial Classification Code No. 3241.  The existing Branford Cement Plant is located in Suwannee County at 5117 U.S. Highway 27 in Branford, Florida.  The UTM coordinates Zone 17, 321.4 km East and 3315.9 km North.  



This final permit is organized into the following sections:  Section 1 (General Information); Section 2 (Administrative Requirements); Section 3 (Emissions Unit Specific Conditions).



Statement of Basis



This air pollution construction permit is issued under the provisions of:  Chapter 403 of the Florida Statutes (F.S.) and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-296 and 62-297 of the Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  The permittee is authorized to conduct the proposed work in accordance with the conditions of this permit.  This project is subject to the general preconstruction review requirements in Rule 62-212.300, F.A.C. and is not subject to the preconstruction review requirements for major stationary sources in Rule 62-212.400, F.A.C. for the Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) of Air Quality.



Upon issuance of this final permit, any party to this order has the right to seek judicial review of it under Section 120.68 of the Florida Statutes by filing a notice of appeal under Rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection in the Office of General Counsel (Mail Station #35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000) and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate District Court of Appeal.  The notice must be filed within 30 days after this order is filed with the clerk of the Department.



Executed in Tallahassee, Florida



(Electronic Signature)


(DRAFT)


for
Jeffery F. Koerner, Program Administrator



Office of Permitting and Compliance



Division of Air Resource Management



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE



The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this Final Air Permit package (including the Final Determination and Final Permit with Appendices) was sent by electronic mail, or a link to these documents made available electronically on a publicly accessible server, with received receipt requested before the close of business on the date indicated below to the following persons.



Tom Messer, Suwannee American Cement, LLC: tomm@vcsmc.com 


Max Lee, Ph.D., P.E., Koogler and Associates:  mlee@kooglerassociates.com 


Khalid AlNahdy, DEP Northeast District:  khalid.alnahdy@dep.state.fl.us 


Kathleen Forney, EPA Region 4:  forney.kathleen@epa.gov 


Heather Ceron, EPA Region 4:  ceron.heather@epa.gov 


Chris Bird, Alachua County Department of Environmental Regulation:  chris@alachuacounty.us 


Chair, Suwannee County Board of County Commissioners:  commissioners@suwcounty.org 


Chair, Alachua County Board of County Commissioners:  bocc@alachuacounty.us 


December McSherry:  lmcshe2001@aol.com 


Annette Long, Save Our Suwannee, Inc.:  long5892@bellsouth.net 


Thomas Ellison:  dmot51@aol.com 


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


Facility Description


The existing facility consists of a portland cement manufacturing plant, the associated quarry, and raw material and cement handling operations.  The plant combines raw materials and utilizes a preheater/calciner kiln system with in-line raw mill to produce cement clinker.  The clinker is milled and combined with gypsum and limestone to produce portland cement.  The existing plant has a capacity of 210 tons per hour of dry preheater feed materials, 120 tons per hour of clinker production, and 150 tons per hour of portland cement production.  Annual production is limited to the following 12-month rolling totals:  1,648,578 tons per year of dry preheater feed materials; 965,425 tons per year of clinker production; and 1,191,360 tons per year of portland cement production. 


The main stack is equipped with continuous emission monitoring systems (CEMS) for volatile organic compounds (VOC), total hydrocarbons (THC), nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur dioxide (SO2), a process monitor for carbon monoxide (CO) and a continuous opacity monitoring system (COMS) for visible emissions.


The facility is comprised of the following permitted emissions units (EU).



			EU No.


			Emissions unit Description





			001


			1,000 TPH primary crusher and associated unenclosed belt conveyors to raw material storage – fugitive emissions





			002


			Raw material processing operations controlled by baghouses





			003


			Raw material processing – unenclosed conveyor transfer points – D conveyors





			004


			In line kiln/raw mill controlled by baghouse – main stack





			005


			Clinker cooler controlled by Electrostatic Precipitator (ESP)





			006


			Clinker and cement processing operations controlled by baghouses





			007


			Clinker and cement processing – unenclosed conveyor transfer points – M conveyors





			008


			Coal mill and coal transfer system controlled by baghouses





			009


			Unenclosed coal conveying equipment – S conveyors





			010


			Natural gas fired emergency generator set








PROJECT DESCRIPTION



This permit affects EU’s 002, 003 and 004.  The project is to install and operate equipment to use bottom ash as a raw material in the process and to transfer and add small amounts of the in-line raw mill/kiln baghouse dust to the finished cement product.



The bottom ash will be used in the same manner as the presently used fly ash to substitute for other sources of silica, iron and aluminum (such as sand, clay and bauxite).  


A temporary VOC annual cap will apply until the final raw material mix is determined that will optimize product quality and ensure compliance with the existing permits and applicable regulations.  Thereafter, a revised THC emission standard of 20 parts per million, by volume, dry at 7 percent (ppmvd @7% O2) will replace the VOC emission standard of 0.12 pounds per ton of clinker (lb/ton).


Facility Regulatory Classification



· The facility is a major source of hazardous air pollutants (HAP).



· The facility is a Title V major source of air pollution in accordance with Chapter 213, F.A.C.



· The facility is a major stationary source in accordance with Rule 62-212.400(PSD), F.A.C.



1. Permitting Authority:  The permitting authority for this project is the Office of Permitting and Compliance, Division of Air Resource Management, Florida Department of Environmental Protection (Department).  The mailing address is 2600 Blair Stone Road (MS #5505), Tallahassee, Florida  32399-2400.  All documents related to applications for permits to operate an emissions unit shall be submitted to the Air Resource Section of the Department’s Northeast District Office at 7825 Baymeadows Way, Suite 200-B, Jacksonville, Florida 32256-7590.



2. Compliance Authority:  All documents related to compliance activities such as reports, tests and notifications shall be submitted to the Air Resource Section of the Department’s Northeast District Office at 7825 Baymeadows Way, Suite 200-B, Jacksonville, Florida  32256-7590.



3. Applicable Regulations, Forms and Application Procedures:  Unless otherwise specified in this permit, the construction and operation of the subject emissions units shall be in accordance with the capacities and specifications stated in the application.  The facility is subject to all applicable provisions of: Chapter 403, F.S.; and Chapters 62-4, 62-204, 62-210, 62-212, 62-213, 62-296 and 62-297, F.A.C.  Issuance of this permit does not relieve the permittee from compliance with any applicable federal, state, or local permitting or regulations.


4. New or Additional Conditions:  For good cause shown and after notice and an administrative hearing, if requested, the Department may require the permittee to conform to new or additional conditions.  The Department shall allow the permittee a reasonable time to conform to the new or additional conditions and on application of the permittee, the Department may grant additional time.  [Rule 62-4.080, F.A.C.]



5. Modifications:  The permittee shall notify the Compliance Authority upon commencement of construction.  No new emissions unit shall be constructed and no existing emissions unit shall be modified without obtaining an air construction permit from the Department.  Such permit shall be obtained prior to beginning construction or modification.  A permittee may request that a permit be extended as a modification of the permit.  Such a request must be submitted in writing before the expiration of the permit.  Upon timely submittal of a request for extension, the permit will remain in effect until final agency action is taken on the request.  For construction permits, an extension shall be granted if the applicant can demonstrate reasonable assurances that, upon completion, the extended permit will comply with the standards and conditions required by applicable regulation.  [Rules 62-210.300(1) and 62-212.300(1)(a), F.A.C.]



6. Source Obligation:



(a) At such time that a particular source or modification becomes a major stationary source or major modification (as these terms were defined at the time the source obtained the enforceable limitation) solely by virtue of a relaxation in any enforceable limitation which was established after August 7, 1980, on the capacity of the source or modification otherwise to emit a pollutant, such as a restriction on hours of operation, then the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., shall apply to the source or modification as though construction had not yet commenced on the source or modification.


(b) At such time that a particular source or modification becomes a major stationary source or major modification (as these terms were defined at the time the source obtained the enforceable limitation) solely by exceeding its projected actual emissions, then the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., shall apply to the source or modification as though construction had not yet commenced on the source or modification.


[Rule 62-212.400(12), F.A.C.]



7. Application for Title V Air Operation Permit Revision:  This permit authorizes modification of the permitted emissions units (EU’s); specifically to use bottom ash as a raw material and to allow additional temporary VOC emissions from the in-line raw mill/kiln (EU 004).  A Title V air operation permit revision is required for regular operation of the permitted emissions units.  The permittee shall apply for a Title V operation permit revision at least 90 days prior to expiration of this permit, but no later than 180 days after completing the required work and resuming normal operation to include any new methods of operation authorized by this project.  To apply for a Title V air operation permit revision, the applicant shall submit the appropriate application form, compliance test results, and such additional information as the Department may by law require.  The application shall be submitted to the appropriate Permitting Authority with copies to the Compliance Authority.  [Rules 62-4.030, 62-4.050, 62-4.220 & 62-213.420, F.A.C.] 



8. Future Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping of Projected Actual Emissions:  This construction permit avoids the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., for certain pollutants based in whole or in part on projected actual emissions calculations.  In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions shall apply to emissions of such pollutants as described in Section 3, Specific Condition 10. 



This section of the permit addresses the following emissions units.



			E.U. ID No.


			Emission Unit Description





			002


			Raw material processing operations controlled by baghouses





			003


			Raw material processing – unenclosed conveyor transfer points – D conveyors





			004


			In line kiln/raw mill controlled by baghouse - main stack





			006


			Clinker and cement processing operations controlled by baghouses








Compliance with Existing Permit Conditions



1. Existing Permits:  This permit supplements all existing valid air construction permits.  The permittee shall continue to comply with all applicable conditions from valid air construction permits (as incorporated into the current Title V air operation permit No. 1210465-019-AV), except as modified by this permit.  
[Rule 62-4.070, F.A.C. and Air Construction Permit No. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), including all modifications thereof]



portland cement neshap


2. Portland Cement NESHAP:  The facility is subject to the applicable provisions contained in 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 63, Subpart LLL - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP) From the Portland Cement Manufacturing Industry.


{The facility was constructed in accordance with NESHAP, Subpart LLL applicable to new Portland cement plants constructed after 1998.  The facility is also an existing affected source subject to NESHAP, Subpart LLL promulgated on September 9, 2010 and revised in 2013.


Equipment



3. New Equipment:  The permittee is authorized to construct and operate the following permanent equipment to store, process and introduce bottom ash into the pyroprocessing system and to transport a portion of the dust captured in the in-line kiln/raw mill baghouse (EU 004) to the exhaust side of the finish mill (within EU 006):


a. A bottom ash screening and conveyance system within the EU 002, Raw Material Processing Operations.  The bottom ash will be stored in Emission Point U-02-01 of EU 002.  Bottom ash will be conveyed to EU 004 by the existing EU 003, Raw Materials Processing conveyers and transfer points.



b. A fully enclosed dust conveyance system from Emissions Point E-21 of EU 004 to Emission Point N-91 (dust collector) of EU 006.



[Application No. 1210465-026-AC]



raw materials and process limits


{The following condition revises the original Air Construction Permit No. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), Section III, Subsection B., Condition 4 as modified by Air Construction Permit No. 1210465-011-AC (PSD-FL-259F).  Changes are shown in strikeout and double-underlined format.}  


4. Process Rate Limitations:  The kiln shall not process more than 210 tons per hour of dry preheater feed, bottom ash and dry fly ash fed directly to the calciner and shall not produce more than 120 tons of clinker per hour.  The facility shall not produce more than 150 tons of cement per hour.  Process and production rates shall be further limited to 1,684,578 tons of dry preheater feed, bottom ash and dry fly ash in any consecutive 12-month period, 965,425 tons of clinker in any consecutive 12-month period, and 1,191,360 tons of portland cement in any consecutive 12-month period.  



The clinker production rate identified in the above paragraph shall be determined by the following equation:



Clinker Production = [(Feed) (Kiln Feed LOI Factor) + (Fly Ash Injection) (Fly Ash LOI Factor) + (Bottom Ash Injection) (Bottom Ash LOI Factor)]



Where:



· Kiln feed is determined by the Poldos control system.



· Fly ash is determined from the rotary feed system or equivalent.


· Bottom ash is determined from the rotary feed system or equivalent.


· Loss on Ignition (LOI) for the kiln feed, bottom ash and fly ash is based on a 30 operating-day block average of daily measurements.  For purposes of this requirement, an operating day is any day that the kiln produces clinker or fires fuel.



[Application No. 1210465-026-AC; Rule 62-210.200, F.A.C., Definitions - potential to emit (PTE); Permit Nos. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), 1210465-011-AC (PSD-FL-259F) 



Emission Limitations and Performance Standards


5. VOC:  The applicable VOC emission limits (0.12 pounds per ton of clinker and 14.4 pounds per hour) contained in Condition III.B.15 of Permit No. 1210465-011 shall be replaced and superseded by the following emission standards:


a. 50 parts per million by volume, dry at 7 percent oxygen (ppmvd @7% O2), (THC reported as propane), beginning on the date of initial use of bottom ash following issuance of this permit;



b. 58 tons per 12-calendar month period, rolled monthly, (THC reported as propane), within the 180 operating days beginning with the first use of bottom ash after issuance of this permit.  Methane and ethane emissions may be measured and subtracted to calculate this value.



c. 20 ppmvd @7% O2, (THC reported as propane), beginning 181 operating days after the date of initial use of bottom ash following issuance of this permit, but no later than September 9, 2015.


[Application No. 1210465-026-AC; Rules 62-4.070(Reasonable Assurance), 62-210.200(Definitions) and 
62-212.300, F.A.C.; NESHAP, Subpart LLL; Permit Nos. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), 1210465-004-AC (PSD-FL-259C), 1210465-FL-008 (PSD-FL-259D), 1210465-011-AC (PSD-FL-259F)]


{The THC emission standard of 20 ppmvd @7% O2 is equivalent to the original VOC emission standard of 0.12 lb/ton of clinker and is more stringent than the value of 24 ppmvd @7% O2 pursuant to NESHAP, Subpart LLL and subject to a compliance date of September 9, 2015}



Compliance Monitoring and Testing Requirements


{The following condition revises original Air Construction Permit No. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), Section III, Subsection B., Condition 4 as modified by Air Construction Permit No. 1210465-008-AC (PSD-FL-259D).  Changes are shown in strikeout and double-underlined format.}  


6. Material Balance Records of Mercury:  The owner or operator shall demonstrate compliance with the mercury throughput limitation of 97 pounds per consecutive 12-month period by material balance and making and maintaining records of monthly and rolling 12-month mercury throughput.  The owner or operator shall, for each month of sampling required by this condition, perform daily sampling of the raw mill feed, any baghouse dust transferred to the finish mill, coal, petroleum coke, alternative fuels, tires and tire derived fuel, and shall composite the daily samples each month, and shall analyze the monthly composite sample to determine mercury content of these materials for the month.  The owner or operator shall determine the net mass of mercury introduced into the pyroprocessing system (in units of pounds per month) from the total of the product of the mercury content from the monthly composite analysis and the mass of each material or fuel used minus the product of the mercury content during the month.  The consecutive 12-month record shall be determined from the individual monthly records for the current month and the preceding eleven months and shall be expressed in units of pounds of mercury per consecutive 12-month period.  Such records shall be completed no later than 25 days following the month of the records.  To determine the mercury content of the feed material and fuels to be used in the monthly calculation, sampling and analysis shall be performed in accordance with the following schedule:



i. For the first quarter of the operation of the plant, sample for each month of the quarter and analyze each month’s composite sample.



ii. For the next three quarters, sample for one month of each quarter and analyze that month’s composite sample.



iii. For each year thereafter, sample for one month of each year and analyze that month’s composite sample, except as follows.



a. If there is a change in feed material or fuels utilized from those previously sampled and analyzed, the frequency shall revert to ii, above, for the next three quarters.



b. If the monthly composite analysis shows a total net monthly mercury throughput of greater than 6.2 pounds per month of mercury introduced into the pyroprocessing system, the frequency shall revert to ii, above, for the next three quarters or until the net monthly throughput is less than or equal to 6.2 pounds per month, whichever is longer.



[Application No. 1210465-026-AC; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C.; Permit Nos. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), 1210465-008-AC (PSD-FL-259D) and 120465-023-AC]



7. CEMS/COMS:  The permittee shall continuously monitor the following with data collected by CEMS/COMS to demonstrate compliance with the existing emissions standards (as required by applicable air construction permits and reflected in the current Title V air operation permit), and with the modified emissions standards for VOC and THC specified in Condition 5 above:  


a. CO (process monitor for reasonable reassurance)


b. NOX


c. SO2 


d. THC (for VOC) 


e. CO2


f. Opacity  


The applicable methods and performance specifications are reflected in the current Title V air operation permit as established by air construction permits referenced below.


[Application No. 1210465-026-AC; Rule 62-4.070(3); Permit Nos. 1210465-001-AC (PSD-FL-259), 1210465-004-AC (PSD-FL-259C), 1210465-FL-008 (PSD-FL-259D), 1210465-011-AC (PSD-FL-259F), 
120465-023-AC]



8. Operations and Emissions:  The permittee shall continuously monitor the:  fuel feed rates, kiln feed rate, clinker production rate and baghouse inlet temperature in accordance with the current Title V air operation permit.  [Application; Rule 62-4.070(3), F.A.C. No. 1210465-019-AV]



9. Compliance Stack Tests:  The permittee shall continue to conduct stack tests in accordance with the methods and requirements reflected in the current Title V air operation permit to demonstrate compliance with the emissions standards.  The first required stack tests for CO and dioxins/furans conducted after first use of bottom ash shall be conducted while using bottom ash.  [Rule 62-297.310(7)(a)4, F.A.C.]



10. Future Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping of Projected Actual Emissions:  This construction permit avoids the requirements of subsections 62-212.400(4) through (12), F.A.C., for certain pollutants based in whole or in part on projected actual emissions calculations.  In accordance with Rule 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C., the following monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping provisions shall apply to emissions of such pollutants: 



1. The permittee shall monitor the emissions of CO and VOC from the In-Line Kiln/Raw Mill system 
(EU-004) using the most reliable information available, calculate and maintain a record of the annual emissions, in tons per year on a calendar year basis, for a period of 5 years (2013 through 2017) following resumption of regular operations after the change.  Emissions shall be computed in accordance with Rule 62-210.370, F.A.C. 



2. The permittee shall report to the Department within 60 days after the end of each year during which records must be generated under subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1., F.A.C., setting out the unit's annual emissions during the calendar year that preceded submission of the report.  The report shall contain the following: 



a. The name, address and telephone number of the owner or operator of the major stationary source; 



b. The annual emissions as calculated pursuant to subparagraph 62-212.300(1)(e)1., F.A.C.; 



c. If the emissions differ from the preconstruction projection, an explanation as to why there is a difference; and 



d. Any other information that the owner or operator wishes to include in the report. 



3. The information required to be documented and maintained pursuant to subparagraphs 
62-212.300(1)(e)1. and 2., F.A.C., shall be submitted to the Department, which shall make it available for review to the general public. 



[Rules 62-4.070 and 62-212.300(1)(e), F.A.C.]


{Permitting Note:  Refer to the Technical Evaluation issued February 1, 2013 that contains baseline actual emissions, past production rates, projected annual emissions, and projected future production when performing the calculations described in paragraph 2.c. above.}
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



mailto:chris@alachuacounty.us

mailto:commissioners@suwcounty.org

mailto:bocc@alachuacounty.us

mailto:lmcshe2001@aol.com

mailto:long5892@bellsouth.net

mailto:dmot51@aol.com

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




From: The Lonas

To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Re: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Saturday, February 02, 2013 11:48:54 AM

| recieved your notice and was able to download the four files. Thanks.

Annette Long

From: "Scearce, Lynn" <Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us>

To: "tomm@vcsme.com" <tomm@vcsmc.com>

Cc: "mlee@kooglerassociates.com" <mlee@kooglerassociates.com>; "AlNahdy, Khalid"
<Khalid.AINahdy@dep.state.fl.us>; "forney.kathleen@epa.gov" <forney.kathleen@epa.gov>;
"ceron.heather@epa.gov" <ceron.heather@epa.gov>; "chris@alachuacounty.us"
<chris@alachuacounty.us>; "commissioners@suwcounty.org"
<commissioners@suwcounty.org>; "bocc@alachuacounty.us" <bocc@alachuacounty.us>;
"Imcshe2001@aol.com” <Imcshe2001@aol.com>; "long5892@bellsouth.net"
<long5892@bellsouth.net>; "dmots1@aol.com” <dmots51@aol.com>; "Linero, Alvaro"
<Alvaro.Linero@dep.state.fl.us>

Sent: Friday, February 1, 2013 2:43 PM

Subject: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft
Permit

Dear Mr. Messer:
Attached is the official Notice of Draft Permit for the project referenced below.

Click on the link displayed below to access the permit project documents and
reply back verifying receipt of the document(s) provided in the link.

Note: We must receive verification that you are able to access the documents. Your immediate reply will
preclude subsequent e-mail transmissions to verify accessibility of the document(s).
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
If you have any problems opening the documents or would like further information,
please contact the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Office of
Permitting and Compliance.

Lynn Scearce

Office of Permitting and Compliance (OPC)
Division of Air Resource Management — DEP
2600 Blair Stone Road, Mail Stop 5505
Phone: 850-717-9025

Did you know that the Department may not require you to submit a Title V fee for the 2012 calendar year? To learn
more, please visit us online at the following web address: http://www.titleSfeeholiday.com/
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



Please take a few minutes to share your comments on the service you received from the
department by clicking on this link. DEP_Customer Survey.



http://survey.dep.state.fl.us/?refemail=Lynn.Scearce@dep.state.fl.us




From: Messer Tom
Subject: Read: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:50:01 PM

Your message was read on Friday, February 01, 2013 2:49:02 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:tomm@vcsmc.com




From: Linero, Alvaro

To: Scearce, Lynn
Subject: Read: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 3:10:26 PM

Your message was read on Friday, February 01, 2013 3:10:24 PM (GMT-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=FIRST ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=LINERO_A

mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=Lynn.Scearce




From: Microsoft Exchange

To: mlee@kooglerassociates.com
Subject: Relayed: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:43:55 PM

Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com”mlee@kooglerassociates.com
Subject: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit

Sent by Microsoft Exchange Server 2007



mailto:/O=FLORIDADEP/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=MICROSOFTEXCHANGE329E71EC88AE4615BBC36AB6CE41109E

mailto:mlee@kooglerassociates.com




From: Microsoft Exchange

To: chris@alachuacounty.us; bocc@alachuacounty.us
Subject: Relayed: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:43:54 PM

Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:chris@alachuacounty.us"chris@alachuacounty.us

HYPERLINK "mailto:bocc@alachuacounty.us"bocc@alachuacounty.us

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

To: tomm@vcesmce.com
Subject: Relayed: 1210465-026-AC, Suwannee American Cement, LLC, Branford Cement Plant, Draft Permit
Date: Friday, February 01, 2013 2:45:03 PM

Delivery to these recipients or distribution lists is complete, but delivery notification was not sent by the destination:
HYPERLINK "mailto:tomm@vcsmc.com"tomm@vcsmc.com
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



